
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, December 1, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. 
Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 

110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 
Zoom Meeting Information on Page 2 

AMENDED 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on topics not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Approve Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  November 3rd 
c. Contract Extension with Patriot Building & Grounds Maintenance 
d. Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Boardman for Building 

Department Services, Plan Review and Building Inspections 
5. Business Items 

a. Road Use Agreement with South Hulbert Wind LLC and Horseshoe Bend Wind 
LLC (Brookfield Renewable representatives Jared Cooley and Anya Andreeva) 

b. Employee Appreciation Day for Non-Union Employees (Lindsay Grogan, Human 
Resources) 

c. Command Team Update 
i. Order No. OR-2021-15:  Declaring a Local State of Emergency 

d. Building Project Updates 
6. Department Reports 

a. Local Public Safety Coordinating Council Quarterly Report (Jessica Rose) 
b. Administrator’s Monthly Report (Darrell J. Green) 
c. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (Melissa Ross) 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports 
9. Signing of documents 
10. Adjournment 
 

Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 
 

media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the  
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about  
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, County Administrator at (541) 676-
2529. 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546  PASSWORD:  97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only Using Meeting ID 541-676-2546#: 

• 1-346-248-7799 
• 1-669-900-6833  
• 1-312-626-6799 

• 1-929-436-2866 
• 1-253-215-8782 
• 1-301-715-8592 

 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546


 

Board Minutes, November 3, 2021                                                                             Page 1 of 3 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 
November 3, 2021 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present In-Person 
Chair Don Russell, Commissioner Jim Doherty, Commissioner Melissa Lindsay, Darrell J. 
Green, Katie Imes, Roberta Lutcher 
Present Via Zoom 
Mike Gorman, Paul Gray, Lindsay Grogan, Crystal Jaeger, Christy Kenny, Kate Knop, Aaron 
Moss, Jaylene Papineau, Nazario Rivera, Linda Skendzel, Heidi Turrell; Non-Staff:  JoAnna 
Lamb, Karen Pettigrew, Rick Stokoe, David Sykes 
Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Roll Call:  9:02 
City & Citizen Comments:  None 
Open Agenda:  No items 
Consent Calendar 
Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar: 

1. Accounts Payable & Payroll Payables 
2. Minutes:  September 8th 
3. Reappointment of Jeff Wenholz to the Solid Waste Advisory Committee representing 

Position Seven; term to be November 3, 2021 to November 3, 2025 
4. Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Grant Agreement #172717; effective when 

fully executed and shall expire on June 30, 2022; $50,000; planning work to identify 
behavioral health inequities; and authorize Commissioner Lindsay to sign on behalf of 
the County 

5. Subdivision Plat – Tuscany at Boardman, Phase 3 
Commissioner Doherty seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Business Items 
Acknowledge Upcoming Retirements of Bill Morris, Ross McKinley, Carolyn Papineau 
Chair Russell noted the important dates of each retiree’s career with Morrow County.  The 
Commissioners thanked them for their more than 85 years of combined service to the County.   
 
Break:  9:10-9:16 a.m. to sign the subdivision plat. 
 
Purchase Request, Exterior Graphics for New Public Transit Buses 
Katie Imes, The Loop 
Ms. Imes asked the Board to approve the graphic design on the bus in either the “full wrap” 
version or the “partial wrap” version.  The Commissioners preferred the partial wrap but asked 
for the graphic design to be reworked to better reflect the structures and activities in Morrow 
County.  
 



 

Board Minutes, November 3, 2021                                                                             Page 2 of 3 
 

Oregon Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Division Agreement No. 35263, 
Section 5311 Program, Funding for Rural Areas – Administrative Expenses 
Katie Imes, The Loop 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve ODOT Public Transportation Division Agreement No. 
35263; effective November 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023; $280,787 with a County match of $32,138.  
Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Out-of-State Travel Authorization 
Justin Nelson, District Attorney/County Counsel 
Mr. Nelson explained the out-of-state travel for one of his employees was approved a few weeks 
ago and this request was to use Child Abuse Multidisciplinary Intervention (CAMI) Grant Funds 
to send the members of the Multidisciplinary Team (MDT) to the same conference in San Diego.  
The MDT is comprised of County and non-County employees and $16,902.75 remain in the 
CAMI Grant for training that is available until June 30, 2022, he said. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to authorize the out-of-state travel to the Conference on Child and 
Family Maltreatment, utilizing CAMI Grant Funds.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  
Unanimous approval. 
 
Association of Oregon Counties Annual Conference Product Tasting 
The Board agreed to not participate in this year’s product tasting event at the conference in 
November. 
 
Command Team Update 

• The statewide statistic for intensive care unit (ICU) beds being used by COVID patients 
dropped to 17%.  Of the 26 ICU beds in the region, 11% were used by COVID patients 
on Monday, but a few days later it increased to 26%.  The Emergency Operations Center 
meetings will be cancelled, unless the ICU statistic goes above 30%, but the Command 
Team will continue to meet. 

• Public Health Director, Nazario Rivera, recommended the County use the same 
timeframe as the State regarding the length to quarantine – seven days if the person tests 
out.  The Board agreed by consensus to the recommendation. 

 
Building Project Updates 

• Courthouse Feasibility Study – DLR Group met with stakeholders to review their draft 
findings.  They presented three options – low-cost, medium-cost, and a full-blown add an 
addition or build a new building.  DLR Group will return mid-month to provide a cost 
analysis and final report.  Chair Russell and Commissioner Lindsay requested that DLR 
Group provide more information on costs associated with a new building, even if it added 
to the already agreed upon scope of work.   

• Morrow County Government Center Building – main delays continue to be the bus bar to 
power the building, supplies for the heated sidewalks, and light fixtures.  Any work that 
can be done in the interim is being done.   



 

Board Minutes, November 3, 2021                                                                             Page 3 of 3 
 

Department Reports 
• The Administrator’s Monthly Report was reviewed by Darrell Green. 
• The Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report was reviewed by Administrative Lieutenant Melissa 

Ross. 
• The Finance Department Quarterly Report was reviewed by Kate Knop, Director. 

 
Correspondence 

• Letter regarding the River Democracy Act from six Oregon Senators and Representatives 
to the Chairs and Ranking Members of the U.S. Senate Energy and Natural Resources 
Committee and the U.S. Senate National Parks Subcommittee, and Senators Ron Wyden 
and Jeff Merkley. 

 
Commissioner Reports 

• Reports were provided. 
 
Signing of documents 
 
Adjourned:  10:46 a.m. 































 

ROAD USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS ROAD USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into 
as of this 1st Day of December, 2021 ("Effective Date") by and between Morrow County, whose 
address for purposes of this Agreement is 100 S. Court St., Heppner, Oregon, 97836 ("County") 
and South Hurlburt Wind, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“SHW”) and Horseshoe 
Bend Wind, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“HBW”, together with SHW, the "Wind 
Operators", together with the County, the “Parties” and each individually, a “Party”). The 
address of each of SHW and HBW for purposes of this Agreement is 200 Liberty St., 14th Floor, 
New York, New York, 10281 c/o Brookfield Renewable U.S.. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, (i) SHW is the owner of a wind project located in Morrow and Gilliam Counties, 
Oregon (the “South Hurlburt Project”), and (ii) HBW is the owner of a wind project located in 
Morrow and Gilliam Counties, Oregon (the “Horseshoe Bend Project”, together with the South 
Hurlburt Project, collectively, the “Projects” and each individually, a “Project”); and  
 

 
WHEREAS, the Wind Operators intend to repower an existing commercial wind turbine 

electrical generation facility on sites located in Morrow County and Gilliam County, Oregon, as 
described in Exhibit A, (Overall map including turbines, wind turbine delivery and construction 
routes and other roads used during repowering of the Projects, access permits, utility permits, 
O&M building and etc.) with 338 wind turbine generators, of which 85 wind turbine generators, 
with nameplate capacity of approximately 212.5 megawatts, are located in Morrow County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Wind Operators intend to obtain the necessary approvals to operate, 
maintain and repower the Projects, including verifying with the Morrow County Planning 
Department and the Oregon Energy Facility Siting Council if there are permits or conditions 
required prior to beginning repowering construction in respect of the Projects; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the operation, maintenance and repowering of the Projects, 
the Parties desire to address certain matters relating to the roads owned, operated and maintained 
by the County and as shown on Exhibit B (Map to include all wind turbine delivery routes, 
construction routes and other roads used during construction of projects in Morrow County) 
attached hereto (collectively, the "Roads"), over which it will be necessary for the Wind Operators 
and their representatives, contractors, subcontractors, and employees (each, a “Wind Operator 
Representative”) to, among other things:  (i) transport heavy equipment and materials which may 
be in excess of local design limits of certain of the Roads, (ii) transport locally sourced materials, 
such as concrete and gravel, on the Roads; and (iii) make specific modifications and improvements 
(both temporary and permanent) to the Roads (including various associated culverts, bridges, cattle 
guards, road shoulders and other fixtures) to permit such equipment and materials to pass (the 
“Repowering Work”); and  
 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 2 
 

 WHEREAS, the Wind Operators and the County wish to set forth their understanding and 
agreement relating to the use of Roads during the operation, maintenance and repowering of the 
Projects; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Each of the Wind Operators will undertake the following activities in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement:   

 
a. Designate a company representative with authority to represent the Wind Operators 

(the “Wind Operator Designee”). The Wind Operator Designee will be responsible for inspecting 
County’s requests for repairs and scheduling those repairs within the time frame requested by 
County. At any time the Wind Operator Designee is changed, the Wind Operators shall notify 
County within 24 hours, informing County of new Wind Operator Designee name, address, email 
address, and contact phone number.  As of the date of the Agreement, the Wind Operator Designee 
for each of SHW and HBW is Daniel Perry, with a mailing address at P.O. Box 248, Arlington, 
Oregon, 97812, phone number: (541) 371-1168, e-mail address: 
daniel.perry@brookfieldrenewable.com; 

 
b. Prior to beginning repowering construction of the Projects, provide the County with 

a site plan identifying turbine locations, site access points, and road crossings, along with the 
transportation route for the Project including routes for heavy haul, construction materials, supplies 
and other construction traffic attached as Exhibit A, subject to amendment as may be agreed by 
the Parties and approval from Morrow County Public Works Director, County Administrator or 
County Designee (as defined below); 

 
c. Prior to beginning repowering construction of the Projects, provide the County with 

all design and engineering specifications for Road improvements required for the Projects, to be 
agreed in writing among the Parties, to be attached as Exhibit C, as the same may be updated from 
time to time, subject to amendment and approval from Morrow County Public Works Director, 
County Administrator or County Designee, which design and engineering specifications shall be 
consistent with standards per the Morrow County Transportation System Plan, as provided by the 
County to the Wind Operators; 
 

d. Notify the Morrow County Public Works Director in advance of all oversize 
transportation and crane crossings over, across or along any Road through the Oregon Department 
of Transportation permitting process; 

 
e. Transport or cause to be transported the tower segments and other oversize loads in 

a reasonable effort to minimize adverse impact on the local traffic; 
 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 3 
 

f. Provide reasonable advance notice to the County when it is necessary for a Road to 
be closed due to a crane crossing or for any other reason relating to the repowering construction 
of the Projects.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Wind Operators will provide no less than forty-
eight (48) hours’ notice when reasonably practicable and will provide all materials necessary to 
close the Road. If a closure is approved by the Morrow County Public Works Director, the Wind 
Operators will provide an estimated timeframe of the closure. If closure is estimated to be for a 
period of more than 20 minutes, the Wind Operators will provide public notice via variable 
message devices and an approved detour with map and signage on the detour route; 

 
g. Provide signage of all Road closures and work zones in compliance with the 

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and as may be required by the County; 
 
h. Subject to Section 3(d), when a Road is in use by a Wind Operator or any Wind 

Operator Representative,  maintain such Road at all times in compliance with County standards 
for general public use as set forth in the Morrow County Transportation System Plan, as provided 
by the County to the Wind Operators, which maintenance may include, but is not limited to, 
blading of gravel roads, patching of paved roads, and dust abatement. County will carry out, at its 
own cost and expense, snow removal on the Road(s) in accordance with County’s own customary 
snow removal schedule for such Road(s) unless higher priority obligations (for example, snow 
removal on county roads for school buses) prevent timely removal to support the Wind Operators’ 
equipment delivery, in which case the Wind Operators shall be responsible, at their own cost and 
expense, for any additional snow removal needed for its repowering construction. For purposes of 
clarity, this Paragraph does not require County to modify its regular repair and maintenance 
schedule. If either Wind Operator determines that maintenance and repair activities in addition to 
those regularly conducted by County are necessary for its use of the Roads, then such additional 
maintenance and repair activities shall be performed by such Wind Operator at its sole cost and 
expense pursuant to this subparagraph;  

 
i. Purchase and deliver applicable road materials for repairs to Roads that are 

damaged by a Wind Operator or Wind Operator Representative during the hauling of materials 
and/or repowering construction of the Projects and bear the reasonable costs to restore any Roads 
that are damaged by a Wind Operator and/or a Wind Operator Representative during the hauling 
of materials and/or repowering construction of the Projects to at least the condition enjoyed 
immediately prior to such damage occurring. It is the intent of this Agreement that the Roads will 
remain open for public use during repowering construction, and the Wind Operators will keep all 
Roads used by them in conditions approved by Morrow County Public Works Director that allow 
the continued public use of the Roads. If, despite using commercially reasonably efforts, the Wind 
Operators or Wind Operator Representative are unable to repair damage caused by them within 
the time frame reasonably requested by County to Morrow County Public Works Director’s 
approval, then with prior notice to the Wind Operators, County may, at its sole discretion, repair 
such damage and invoice the Wind Operators for the actual and documented out-of-pocket costs 
for such repair. The County shall submit an invoice with appropriate supporting documentation 
showing the actual and documented out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the repairs 
to the Wind Operators within thirty (30) days of the completion of such repairs.  The Wind 
Operators shall reimburse County for the cost of such repairs, plus an additional fee of 10% of 
such repairs within thirty (30) days of Wind Operators’ receipt of an invoice with appropriate 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 4 
 

supporting documentation for such costs. The Parties agree that this Section is not intended to 
require County to perform the needed Road repairs with reimbursement from the Wind Operators 
on a regular basis. It is the intent of the Parties that the Wind Operators will maintain and repair 
Roads as described in this Agreement, and will only request County assistance if required after 
exercise of commercially reasonable efforts to repair damage caused by a Wind Operators or Wind 
Operator Representative within the time frame requested by County.  
 

2.  Wind Operators and the Wind Operator Representatives shall have the right to 
access and use the Roads in connection with the Repowering Work in accordance with this 
Agreement. All roads described in Exhibit B identified in the preconstruction inventory must be 
brought to the current County standard per the Morrow County Transportation System Plan, as 
provided by the County to the Wind Operators, or to the standard necessary for the use by Wind 
Operator, in accordance with this Agreement.  Each road will be evaluated during the 
preconstruction inventory and mutually agreed upon by the County and Wind Operator and be 
added to Exhibit C for said improvements.  

 
3. The County, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, agrees that it shall: 
 
a. Designate the Morrow County Public Works Director as the representative with 

authority to represent the County (the “County Designee”, together with the Wind Operator 
Designee, the “Designees”). The County shall notify the Wind Operators of any change to the 
County Designee’s name, mailing address, email address or contact phone number. As of the date 
of the Agreement, the County representative is: Public Works Director, 541-989-9500, 
mscrivner@co.morrow.or.us; 

 
b. Timely review and approve all design and engineering specifications for Road 

improvements required for the Projects, as attached as Exhibit C, as the same may be updated 
from time to time, which design and engineering specifications shall be consistent with standards 
per the Morrow County Transportation System Plan, as provided by the County to the Wind 
Operators; 

 
c. Timely complete Wind Operators’ requested Road improvements pursuant to the 

design and engineering specification approved by County and agreed in writing among the Parties 
as set forth in Exhibit C, as the same may be updated from time to time; 

 
d. Timely perform routine and regular maintenance of the Roads including:  grading, 

snow removal, striping, routine signage, and regularly scheduled maintenance and repair, as per 
County normal maintenance schedule, at the availability and direction of the Morrow County 
Public Works Director;    

 
e. Timely review and approve all Project-related access points and Road crossings, 

which are submitted by the Wind Operators in Exhibits A and B; 
 
f. Timely review and approve plans for all Project-related utility encroachments on 

County rights-of-way; which are submitted by the Wind Operators in Exhibits A and B;  
 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 5 
 

g. Authorize the Morrow County Public Works Director to approve or agree on behalf 
of County to amendments, additions and other revisions to Exhibit A, B, C and D and the final 
location of Road crossings, access points, and utility encroachments as revisions are submitted to 
the County by or on behalf of Wind Operator. 

 
4. Costs and Expenses. Prior to County’s commencement of work on Wind Operators’ 

requested Road improvements (Exhibit C), County and the Wind Operators shall agree in writing 
upon the costs of such requested Road improvements. The Wind Operators will pay the actual and 
documented out-of-pocket costs for such Road improvements not to exceed the amount agreed to 
pursuant to the preceding sentence, plus an additional fee of 10% above said cost for County 
administration of said Road improvements. Any changes to the agreed-upon costs caused by 
modifications to Wind Operators’ design and engineering specifications shall, likewise, be agreed 
upon in writing by the Parties prior to commencement of the relevant work and paid by Wind 
Operators, plus the 10% administrative fee, as set forth in this Section 4.   
 

5.   Pre-Construction Inventory.  No later than thirty (30) days prior to commencement 
of repowering construction, the Wind Operators shall perform a survey to record the condition of 
all Roads which will be used in the transport of equipment, supplies and personnel to the Projects.  
During this survey, the entire length of the Roads shall be videotaped and if deemed necessary by 
the Parties, photographs may also be taken.  In addition, the County will provide the Wind 
Operators, if available, with copies of all plans, cross-sections and specifications relevant to the 
existing Roads structure.  Copies of all pre-construction documentation shall be provided to each 
of the Parties.   

 
6.   Post-Construction Inventory. Upon final completion of repowering construction of 

the Projects, representatives of the County and the Wind Operators will perform a Post-
Construction Inventory using the method set forth in Section 5 for the Pre-Construction Inventory.  
The pre-construction inventory and post-construction inventory data will be compared and if there 
are any wheel lane ruts, cracking or other damage in excess of the pre-construction inventory  
survey, the County and the Wind Operators will determine the extent of the repairs or 
improvements needed to return the Roads to the condition exhibited immediately prior to the 
commencement of the repowering construction in respect of the Projects, as evidenced by the pre-
construction inventory performed pursuant to Section 5. All reasonable actual out-of-pocket costs 
associated with the Post-Construction Inventory repairs shall be borne solely by the Wind 
Operators. The timeframe of completion of said repairs shall be no later than ninety (90) days after 
final completion of the Repowering Work, subject to extension as may be agreed by the Parties, 
and such repairs are to be scheduled as agreed to by the Parties. The Wind Operators shall notify 
County when such repairs have been completed. County shall have fifteen (15) business days from 
receipt of such notice to inspect such repairs and notify the Wind Operators in writing whether or 
not the repairs have been performed to the Morrow County Public Works Director’s approval 
(acting reasonably). Failure by County to provide such written notice within such fifteen (15) 
business days period shall be deemed to be approval of the repairs by the Morrow County Public 
Works Director. 

 
7.   Routing and Access Approval.  As soon as practicable after execution of this 

Agreement and as necessary throughout the repowering construction of the Projects, Wind 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 6 
 

Operators and County shall meet to discuss routing for the transportation of equipment to the 
Projects, Project-related access points and Road crossings and the County shall timely review and 
approve the same. 

 
 8. Agreement Violations. If County determines that a County road or right-of-way has 
been used by Wind Operator or any designee, employee, or contractor outside of those Roads 
authorized in Exhibit B, the County may (a) in the first instance of unauthorized use, promptly 
notify Wind Operator to correct or cause to be corrected the unauthorized use and advise County 
of the corrective actions taken; and (b) in any subsequent instance of unauthorized use or if Wind 
Operator fails to initiate reasonable corrective action in the first instance of unauthorized use, may, 
at its sole discretion, (i) provide fourteen (14) days’ prior written notice to the Wind Operators of 
its intent to terminate this Agreement and, in the event that the Wind Operators fail to respond to 
such notice within such fourteen (14) day period, choose to terminate this Agreement, (ii) add the 
road or right-of-way to the list in Exhibit B, or (iii) come to a mutually agreed resolution with 
Wind Operator. 
 
 9. Mutual Indemnification/Hold Harmless and Liability Insurance Provisions. 

 
a. Indemnity.  Each Party (the "Indemnifying Party") agrees to indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless the other Party and such other Party’s mortgagees, lenders, officers, employees, 
representatives, contractors, subcontractors and agents (the "Indemnified Party") against any and 
all losses, direct or indirect damages (including consequential damages), claims, expenses, and 
other liabilities, including, without limitation, reasonable and documented attorneys’ fees, 
resulting from or arising out of (i) any negligent act or negligent failure to act on the part of the 
Indemnifying Party or anyone else engaged in doing work for the Indemnifying Party, or (ii) any 
breach of this Agreement by the Indemnifying Party.  This indemnification shall not apply to 
losses, damages, claims, expenses and other liabilities to the extent caused by fraud, negligence or 
willful misconduct on the part of the Indemnified Party.  

 
b. Limitations of Liability.  In no event shall any Wind Operator or Wind Operator 

Representative, any of its or their respective members, officers, directors or employees, including 
the Wind Operator Designee, or the County or any of its Boards, officers or employees be liable 
(in contract or in tort, involving negligence, strict liability, or otherwise) to the other Party or their 
contractors, representatives, subcontractors, suppliers, employees, members and shareholders for 
indirect, incidental, consequential or punitive damages resulting from the performance, non-
performance or delay in performance under this Agreement.  

 
c. Required Insurance.  The Wind Operators shall upon commencement of 

repowering construction of the Projects and for the period of repowering construction of the 
Projects maintain in full force and effect commercial general liability insurance in an aggregate 
amount equal to Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) and shall add Morrow County as an additional 
insured party and provide a certificate of insurance to Morrow County.  The Wind Operators may 
utilize any combination of primary and/or excess insurance to satisfy this requirement and may 
satisfy this requirement under existing insurance policies for the Projects. 

 
10. Miscellaneous 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 7 
 

 
a. Remedies and Enforcement.  The Parties acknowledge that money damages would 

not be an adequate remedy for any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement.  Each of the 
Parties covenant and agree that in the event of default of any of the terms, provisions or conditions 
of this Agreement by any Party (the "Defaulting Party"), which default is not caused by the Party 
seeking to enforce said provisions (the "Non-Defaulting Party") and after notice and reasonable 
opportunity to cure has been provided to the Defaulting Party, then in such an event, the Non-
Defaulting Party shall have the right to seek specific performance and/or injunctive relief to 
remedy or prevent any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement.  The remedies of specific 
performance and/or injunctive relief shall be exclusive of any other remedy available at law or in 
equity. 

 
b. Due Authorization.  Each Party hereby represents and warrants that this Agreement 

has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on its behalf. 
 
c. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement proves to be illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected by such finding, and in lieu 
of each provision of this Agreement that is illegal, invalid, or unenforceable a provision shall be 
deemed added as may be possible to accurately reflect the intentions of the Parties and so as to 
make the unenforceable provision legal, valid, and enforceable. 

 
d. Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding 

of the Parties and supersedes all offers, negotiations and other agreements.  There are no 
representations or understandings of any kind not set forth herein.  No amendment or modification 
to this Agreement or waiver of a Party’s rights hereunder shall be binding unless made in writing 
and signed by both Parties. 

 
e. Notices.  All notices shall be in writing and sent (including via email transmission) 

to the Parties at the addresses set forth below (or to such other address and email address as any 
Party shall designate in writing to the other Parties at any time): 
 

If to any Wind Operator: 
P.O. Box 248 
Arlington, Oregon, 97812 
daniel.perry@brookfieldrenewable.com 
 
with copy to: 
 
c/o Brookfield Renewable U.S. 
200 Liberty St., 14th Floor 
New York, New York, 10281 
legal.department.na@brookfieldrenewable.com 
 
If to the County: 
Morrow County 
100 S. Court St. 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 8 
 

Heppner, Oregon, 97836 
mscrivner@co.morrow.or.us 
spointer@co.morrow.or.us 
dgreen@co.morrow.or.us 
 
 
f. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned without the prior written consent 

of the Parties, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
each Wind Operator may assign this Agreement to its affiliates and may collaterally assign this 
Agreement to any financing party in support of the Projects without County’s prior written consent, 
but shall give written notification to County within fourteen (14) days of assignment.   

 
g. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and 
hereto were upon the instrument.  Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this 
Agreement by telecopy shall be as effective as delivery of an originally signed counterpart to this 
Agreement. The words “execution”, “signed”, “signature,” and words of like import in this 
Amendment shall be deemed to include electronic signatures or electronic records, each of which 
shall be of the same legal effect, validity, or enforceability as a manually executed signature or the 
use of a paper-based record keeping system, as the case may be, to the extent and as provided for 
in any applicable law. 

 
h. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon, irrespective of any conflict of laws provisions.  
Both Parties desire that the transactions contemplated hereby be effected and carried out in a 
manner that is in compliance with all laws. 

 
i. Successor and Assigns.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be 

binding upon the Parties, their respective successors, assignees, and legal representatives. 
 
j. If any term of this Agreement is found to be void or invalid, such invalidity shall not 

affect the remaining terms of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and effect. 
 

k. Failure of County or any Wind Operator to insist on strict performance of any of the 
conditions or provisions of this Agreement, or to exercise any of their rights hereunder, shall not 
waive such rights. 

 
l. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of either County or the Wind 

Operators is required or contemplated, unless otherwise specifically stated, such approval or 
consent shall not be made the subject of a demand for additional compensation, nor otherwise 
unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed.  

 
m. In any litigation arising from or related to this Agreement, each Party hereto hereby 

knowingly, voluntarily and intentionally waives the right it may have to a trial by jury with respect 
to any litigation based hereon, or arising out of, under or in connection with this Agreement.   



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 9 
 

 
n. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting or removing any 

applicable federal, state, city, county laws, rules, ordinances, or planning requirements. 
 
o. County agrees that any amendment and additions to Exhibit C can be approved by 

the Public Works Director and the County Administrator on behalf of the County. 
 
p. Term.  This Agreement shall become effective upon the Effective Date and shall 

remain in effect until the date on which all repairs required to be made by any Wind Operator 
pursuant to this Agreement have been completed, as notified or deemed approved by the County 
in accordance with Section 6. 
 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
signatures begin on following page 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in their 
respective names by their duly authorized officers. 
 
 
Wind Operator: 
 
SOUTH HURLBURT WIND, LLC 
 
 
 
By: ________________________ November 23, 2021____ 
 Name: John McVaigh   Date 
 Title: Senior Director 
 
 
By: ________________________ November 23, 2021____ 
 Name: Whitney Wilson  Date 
 Title: Vice President 
 
 
HORSESHOE BEND WIND, LLC 
 
 
 
By: ________________________ November 23, 2021____ 
 Name: John McVaigh   Date 
 Title: Senior Director 
 
 
By: ________________________ November 23, 2021____ 
 Name: Whitney Wilson  Date 
 Title: Vice President 
 
 
County: 
 

 
 

______________________________   ___________________ 
Don Russell, Commissioner    Date 

 
 

_______________________________  __________________ 
Jim Doherty, Commissioner    Date 

 
 



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 11 
 

_______________________________  __________________ 
Melissa Lindsay, Commissioner   Date 

 
  

 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
By:       
Name:        
Title: County Attorney 
  



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 12 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Site Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Transportation Plan Exhibit

Map Document: N:\0022852.00\GIS\SF_DFP_210914\SF_DFP_210914.aprx  11/24/2021  12:31 PM ZHWomeldorf

© 2021 Westwood Professional Services, Inc.

±
Shepherds Flat Wind Energy

Gilliam & Morrow Counties, Oregon

Data Source(s):US Census Bureau (2017);
Westwood (2021); .

November 24, 2021

_̂

Project Location
0 8,000

Feet

G
ill
ia
m
 C
ou

nt
y

M
or
ro
w
 C
ou

nt
y

724

M
or
ga
n 
Rd

M
organ E

PalamateerRd

Up
pe
rF
ou
rm
ile

Ca
ny
on

Rd

Cecil Ln

Bo
s 
Rd

Eubanks Ln
Morgan Rd

Stone
Ln

SullivanRd

ShangralaLn

Taggares Ln

Bottemiller
Ln

EightmileCanyonRd

Lindstrom Ln

Ce
da
rS
pr
in
gs

Ln

BaseLineRd

Three
M
ile

Canyon

U
pp

er
 F
ou

rm
ile

Rd

Tow
er

Rd

Fro
nta
ge
Rd

Rietmann Ln

Taggares Ln

Ew
in
g
Rd

Th
re
e 
M
ile
 C
an
yo
n 
Rd

Zinter

Davidson Rd

M
as
on

 D
av
id
so
n 
Rd

Taggares Ln

Johnso
nGradeLn

Ew
ing Rd

FairviewRd

U
pp

er
Fo
ur
m
ile

Rd

Su
lliv
an
Rd

MorganEastRd

Fo
ur
m
ile

Rd

Sim
tag 

Ln

Fourmile Rd

Fourm
ile

Rd

Baker Ln

ElyCanyonLn

Fairview
 Ln

Threem
ileRd

M
as
on

 R
d

Montagu
eLn

Fourm
ileCanyonRd

W
ill
ow

Cr
ee
k
Rd

CameronLnOld Tree Rd

Immigrant Ln

Fourmile Rd

Eightmile Rd

H
w
y 
19

John
D
ay

H
w
y

Rhea Ln

HeppnerHwy

State
H
w
y
74

Col
um

bia
Riv
erH

wy

I- 84

US
Hw
y3
0

Columb
iaRiver

Hwy

I-84
US Hwy

 30

Ei
gh
tM

ile
Ca
ny
on

Rd

St
at
e
H
w
y
19

Arlington

Washington

T-370

T-367

T-349

T-133

T-368

T-372

T-397

T-571

T-570
T-569

T-616

T-614

T-612

T-611
T-610

T-608
T-607

T-566

T-565

T-564

T-563

T-592

T-591

T-590

T-587

T-586

T-584

T-583

T-598
T-597

T-596

T-582

T-581

T-580
T-579

T-578
T-577
T-576

T-575
T-574

T-562

T-561
T-560
T-559

T-557

T-556
T-555

T-554
T-553
T-552

T-551
T-550
T-549

T-548
T-547

T-546

T-545

T-544
T-543
T-542
T-541

T-540

T-539
T-538

T-534

T-533
T-532
T-531

T-530
T-529

T-528

T-527
T-526
T-525

T-524
T-523

T-521

T-520

T-519
T-518

T-517
T-516
T-515

T-514

T-513
T-512

T-511

T-510

T-509

T-508

T-507

T-506

T-505
T-504

T-502
T-501

T-385

T-384
T-383

T-382
T-381

T-378

T-395
T-394
T-393
T-392
T-391
T-390
T-389
T-388

T-411

T-410
T-409
T-408

T-407

T-405

T-403
T-402

T-401

T-400

T-399T-377
T-376

T-369

T-366
T-365
T-364

T-363

T-362

T-361
T-360
T-359 T-358

T-357
T-356

T-355T-354

T-351

T-350

T-346

T-345

T-344

T-343

T-342

T-348

T-347

T-340

T-339
T-338

T-337

T-336

T-334
T-333

T-332
T-331

T-330

T-329

T-328

T-326

T-325

T-324
T-313
T-314
T-315
T-316

T-317

T-318

T-319

T-321

T-322
T-323

T-312
T-311

T-310
T-309

T-308

T-307

T-306

T-305
T-304

T-303

T-302

T-204

T-200
T-199
T-198
T-197
T-196
T-195

T-190
T-189

T-187

T-186

T-185

T-184
T-183

T-182
T-181
T-180

T-179

T-178

T-177

T-176

T-174
T-173

T-170
T-169

T-168
T-167
T-166
T-165

T-164

T-162

T-161
T-160

T-159

T-155
T-154
T-153

T-152

T-149
T-148

T-147

T-146
T-145

T-144
T-143
T-142

T-141
T-140
T-139
T-138

T-137

T-136
T-135

T-134

T-130
T-129
T-128
T-127

T-126

T-125
T-124
T-123
T-122
T-121
T-120

T-119

T-118

T-115
T-114
T-113

T-112
T-111
T-110
T-109

T-108
T-107
T-106

T-105
T-104

T-573

T-568

T-615

T-609

T-606
T-605

T-588

T-585

T-600

T-602T-595
T-594
T-593

T-558

T-537

T-387

T-380

T-396

T-416
T-415

T-414
T-413

T-412

T-406

T-404

T-398

T-374

T-371

T-353

T-352

T-341
T-335

T-301

T-206

T-205

T-203

T-192
T-175

T-172

T-158
T-157
T-156

T-151

T-132

T-131

T-102

T-589

T-601

T-535

T-522

T-604

T-603

T-188

T-191

T-193

T-171

T-163

T-150

T-117

T-116

T-101

T-202

T-201

T-194

Legend
GE 2.75-127

GE 2.75-116

GE 2.75-100

GE 2.5-116

Decommissioned

County Road

Turbine Road

Existing Road

State Highway

Substations

Laydown Yards

O&M Facilities



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 13 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Transportation Route – “Roads” 
 

  



S

T

A

T

E

 
H

W

Y

 
7

4

S

T

A

T

E

 

H

W

Y

 

7

4

I
-
8

4

EXISTING

CENTRAL

SUBSTATION

EXISTING

O&M SITE

PROPOSED NORTH

AND SOUTH HURLBURT

LAYDOWN YARD

R

H

E

A

 

L

N

R

H

E

A

 
L

N

I
-
8

4

EXISTING

O&M SITE

EXISTING

NORTH

SUBSTATION

DELIVERIES ORIGINATING

FROM I-84 USING EXIT 147

G
I
L
L
I
A

M
 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

M
O

R
R

O
W

 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

T-206

T-205

T-204

T-203

T-202

T-201

T-200

T-199

T-198

T-197

T-196

T-195

T-194

T-192

T-190

T-189

T-187

T-186

T-185

T-184

T-183

T-182

T-181

T-180

T-179

T-178

T-177

T-176

T-175

T-174

T-173

T-172

T-170

T-169

T-168

T-167

T-166

T-165

T-164

T-162

T-161

T-160

T-159

T-158

T-157

T-156

T-155

T-154

T-153

T-152

T-151

T-149

T-148

T-147

T-146

T-145

T-144

T-143

T-142

T-141

T-140

T-139

T-138

T-137

T-136

T-135

T-134

T-132

T-131

T-130

T-129

T-128

T-127

T-126

T-125

T-124

T-123

T-122

T-121

T-120

T-119

T-118

T-102

T-115

T-114

T-113

T-112

T-111

T-110

T-109

T-108

T-107

T-106

T-105

T-104

T-103

T-133

T-116

T-101

T-117

T-150

T-163

T-171

T-188

T-191

T-193

T-371

T-369

T-366

T-365

T-364

T-363

T-362

T-361

T-360

T-359

T-358

T-357

T-356

T-355

T-354

T-353

T-352

T-351

T-350

T-346

T-345

T-344

T-343

T-342

T-341

T-348

T-347

T-340

T-339

T-338

T-337

T-336

T-335

T-334

T-333

T-332

T-331

T-330

T-329

T-328

T-327

T-326

T-325

T-324

T-313

T-314

T-315

T-316

T-317

T-318

T-319

T-320

T-321

T-322

T-323

T-312

T-311

T-310

T-309

T-308

T-307

T-306

T-305

T-304

T-303

T-302

T-301

T-368

T-370

T-349

Delivery Flow Plan -

North

01

0' 7500'5000'2500'

DELIVERIES ORIGINATING

FROM NORTH

N
:
\
0
0
2
2
8
5
2
.
0
0
\
d

w
g

\
C

i
v
i
l
\
E
x
h

i
b

i
t
\
0
0
2
2
8
5
2
C

-
D

F
P

_
C

o
m

p
l
e
t
e
.
d

w
g

 
 
9
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
1
 
1
:
5
1
 
P

M
 
Z

a
c
 
W

o
m

e
l
d

o
r
f

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

REVISIONS:

# DATE COMMENT

.

PREPARED FOR:

.

.

DATE:

SHEET:

9/29/2021

Shepherd's Flat

Wind Energy

Gilliam And Morrow Counties,

Oregon

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300

Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343

Toll Free (888) 937-5150

westwoodps.com

Westwood Professional Services, Inc.

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300

Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343

Toll Free (888) 937-5150

westwoodps.com

700 Meadow Lane North

Minneapolis, MN 55422

DELIVERIES CONNECT TO

SOUTH HURLBURT

SEE SHEET 02

LEGEND:

PROJECT BOUNDARY

#
GE 2.75-127 TURBINE LOCATION (262)

#
GE 2.75-116 TURBINE LOCATION (52)

EXISTING NON-DELIVERY ROAD

EXISTING PUBLIC PAVED DELIVERY ROAD

EXISTING STATE HIGHWAY

EXISTING ACCESS ROAD

#
TURBINE LOCATION OUT OF SCOPE (21)

PROJECT FACILITIES

EXISTING WATER EDGE

ITEM LENGTH

#
GE 2.5-116 TURBINE LOCATION (3)

DELIVERY ROUTE

EXISTING PUBLIC ROAD

EXISTING PUBLIC GRAVEL DELIVERY ROAD

EXISTING COUNTY BOUNDARY



FAIRVIEW RD

F
A

I
R

V
I
E
W

 
L
N

EXISTING HORSESHOE

BEND LAYDOWN YARD

S

T

A

T

E

 
H

W

Y

 
7

4

P

A

L

M

A

T

E

E

R

 

R

D

.

P

A

L

M

A

T

E

E

R

 

R

D

.

EIGHT MILE

CANYON RD.

F
O

U
R

M
I
L
E
 
R

D
.

E

I
G

H

T

 
M

I
L

E

C

A

N

Y

O

N

 
R

D

.

MORGAN RD.

F
O

U
R

M
I
L
E
 
R

D
.

ELY CANYON LN

EXISTING SOUTH

SUBSTATION

EXISTING

O&M SITE

G
I
L
L
I
A

M
 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

M
O

R
R

O
W

 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

DELIVERIES ORIGINATING

FROM I-84 USING EXIT 147

EXISTING HORSESHOE

BEND LAYDOWN YARD

T-397

T-387

T-386

T-385

T-384

T-383

T-382

T-381

T-380

T-379

T-378

T-396

T-395

T-394

T-393

T-392

T-391

T-390

T-389

T-388

T-416

T-415

T-414

T-413

T-412

T-411

T-410

T-409

T-408

T-407

T-406

T-405

T-404

T-403

T-402

T-401

T-400

T-399

T-398

T-377

T-376

T-375

T-374

T-373

T-370

T-372

T-573

T-572

T-571

T-570

T-569

T-568

T-567

T-616

T-615

T-614

T-613

T-612

T-611

T-610

T-609

T-608

T-607

T-606

T-605

T-566

T-565

T-564

T-563

T-592

T-591

T-590

T-588

T-587

T-586

T-585

T-584

T-583

T-600

T-599

T-598

T-602

T-603

T-597

T-596

T-595

T-594

T-593

T-582

T-581

T-580

T-579

T-578

T-577

T-576

T-575

T-574

T-562

T-561

T-560

T-559

T-558

T-557

T-556

T-555

T-554

T-553

T-552

T-551

T-550

T-549

T-548

T-547

T-546

T-545

T-544

T-543

T-542

T-541

T-540

T-539

T-538

T-537

T-536

T-534

T-533

T-532

T-531

T-530

T-529

T-528

T-527

T-526

T-525

T-524

T-523

T-521

T-520

T-519

T-518

T-517

T-516

T-515

T-514

T-513

T-512

T-511

T-510

T-509

T-508

T-507

T-506

T-505

T-504

T-503

T-502

T-501

T-604

T-601

T-589

T-522

T-535

Delivery Flow Plan -

South

02

0' 75005000'2500'

DELIVERIES ORIGINATING

FROM NORTH

N
:
\
0
0
2
2
8
5
2
.
0
0
\
d

w
g

\
C

i
v
i
l
\
E
x
h

i
b

i
t
\
0
0
2
2
8
5
2
C

-
D

F
P

_
C

o
m

p
l
e
t
e
.
d

w
g

 
 
9
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
1
 
1
:
5
1
 
P

M
 
Z

a
c
 
W

o
m

e
l
d

o
r
f

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

REVISIONS:

# DATE COMMENT

.

PREPARED FOR:

.

.

DATE:

SHEET:

9/29/2021

Shepherd's Flat

Wind Energy

Gilliam And Morrow Counties,

Oregon

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300

Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343

Toll Free (888) 937-5150

westwoodps.com

Westwood Professional Services, Inc.

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300

Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343

Toll Free (888) 937-5150

westwoodps.com

700 Meadow Lane North

Minneapolis, MN 55422

DELIVERIES CONNECT TO

SOUTH HURLBURT

SEE SHEET 01

LEGEND:

PROJECT BOUNDARY

#
GE 2.75-127 TURBINE LOCATION (262)

#
GE 2.75-116 TURBINE LOCATION (52)

EXISTING NON-DELIVERY ROAD

EXISTING PUBLIC PAVED DELIVERY ROAD

EXISTING STATE HIGHWAY

EXISTING ACCESS ROAD

#
TURBINE LOCATION OUT OF SCOPE (21)

PROJECT FACILITIES

EXISTING WATER EDGE

#
GE 2.5-116 TURBINE LOCATION (3)

DELIVERY ROUTE

EXISTING PUBLIC ROAD

EXISTING PUBLIC GRAVEL DELIVERY ROAD

EXISTING COUNTY BOUNDARY

ITEM LENGTH



Road Use and Maintenance Agreement                                  Page - 14 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Road Improvements 



 
 
Exhibit C to Morrow County Road Use Agreement 
 
Road Improvements 
 

# Deviation from 
spec 

Action Needed Location Date 
Identified 

Status 

1 Vertical Curve (Sag) Build to meet spec OR-74 & Palmateer Rd 10/13/2021 Open 

2 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Ely Canyon Ln & string road to pads 
T567 - T573 

10/13/2021 Open 

3 Width of Road Build to meet spec SE - Ely Canyon Ln @ 45°31'53.67"N, 
119°59'12.29"W 

10/13/2021 Open 

4 Turning radius Build to meet spec NW - Ely Canyon Ln & Zinter (45°31'29.39"N, 
119°59'16.65"W) 

10/13/2021 Open 

5 Grade exceeds 8% Build to meet spec Eight Mile Canyon Rd measures 11.6% 
(incline) 

10/13/2021 Open 

6 Turning radius Build to meet spec SE - Eight Mile Canyon & string road to pads 
T522 - T524 

10/13/2021 Open 

7 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Eight Mile Canyon & string road to pads 
T501 - T521 

10/13/2021 Open 

9 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Eight Mile Canyon & string road to pads 
T525 - T533 

10/13/2021 Open 

11 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Eight Mile Canyon & string road to pads 
T535 - T551 

10/13/2021 Open 

15 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Eight Mile Canyon & string road to pads 
T552 - T562 

10/13/2021 Open 

22 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Access road & Palmateer Rd 
(45°33'37.78"N, 119°57'30.01"W) 

10/13/2021 Open 

23 Turning radius Build to meet spec NW - Palmateer Rd & Shakedown St 10/13/2021 Open 

24 Turning radius Build to meet spec SE - Shakedown St & string road T590 - T592 10/13/2021 Open 

25 Turning radius Build to meet spec NE - Shakedown St & string road T563 - T566 10/13/2021 Open 

26 Turning radius Build to meet spec SE - Fairview Ln & string road approaching pad 
T596 (45°35'45.26"N, 119°58'37.21"W) 

10/13/2021 Open 

27 Turning radius Build to meet spec SW - Fairview Ln & Access road 
(45°35'46.13"N, 119°58'38.34"W) 

10/13/2021 Open 

36 Clearance/ 
Obstruction 

Gate/fence will need to be modified Fairview Rd & string road to pads T405 & 
T406. Fence measures 14.5' 

10/13/2021 Open 

38 Turning radius Build to meet spec SW - Access road & Fairview Rd 
(45°37'5.84"N, 119°59'41.40"W) 

10/13/2021 Open 

 



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

1,000,000

GLO0144339-05

HOU-003843046-02

X

N/A

               New York, NY  10281

               CANADA

N

3

N/A

3,000,000

1,000,000

N/A

X

10/21/2021

05/01/2021

Morrow County is included as additional insured where required by written contract with respect to general liability. 

X

               Heppner, OR  97836

               Morrow County


N/A

A

CN102903011-BRP-USA-21-22.

50,000

1,000,000

16535

1,000,000

               120 Bremner Blvd., Suite 800

               Marsh Canada Limited


               Toronto, ON  M5J 0A8


               All Associated, Affiliated or Subsidiary Companies including, South Hurlburt Wind, LLC and 
               Brookfield Renewable Power Inc. and


               200 Liberty Street, 14th Floor

Horseshoe Bend Wind, LLC


               100 S. Court St.


X 05/01/2022

Zurich American Insurance Co



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

22

San Antonio

��
��

here for your convenience. ��
 The US Policies evidence above placements were made by Marsh USA Inc. Marsh Canada Limited has only acted in the role of a consultant to the client with respect to these placements, which are indicated 

Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN102903011

               Marsh Canada Limited�
               All Associated, Affiliated or Subsidiary Companies including, South Hurlburt Wind, LLC and 
               Brookfield Renewable Power Inc. and�

               200 Liberty Street, 14th Floor�
Horseshoe Bend Wind, LLC�

               New York, NY  10281

25


















	Agenda
	Minutes, 11-3-21
	Janitorial Contract Extension
	Building Dept. Services IGA w/City of Boardman
	Road Use Agreement
	Employee Appreciation Day for Non-Union Employees
	Order Declaring Local Emergency - COVID
	LPSCC Quarterly Report
	Administrator's Monthly Report
	Sheriff's Office Monthly Report



